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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS

ORT SMIT ~ Us
FORT SMITH DIVISION %SEQCOURT
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§
KURT KNICKREHM, §

RICHARD WEISS,
DEBBIE WILLIAMS,
DICK PICKARTS.
NIKKOLE TTURST,
CAROL GILLIS,
PATSY CHASE,
ROBBIE MCKAY, and
LISA GARRETSON

DEFENDANTS

PLAINTIFFS' ORIGINAL COMPLAINT

1. COME NOW, Plaintffs, RACIHEL CLARK. CIHRISTOPHER GARRIETSON,
AMANDA  SHARDP BURKHOLDER, NICOLE HALLER NAVA. BRANDI
O'HARA. ASHLEY FENTON PRICE and CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS.
Individualtly and as Next Friend of LB a minor. and assert the following causes off
actions against Delendants, KURT KNICKREFIM. RICHARD WEISS. DEBBIL

WILLIAMS. DICK PICKARTS. NIKKOLL THURST. CAROL GILLIS. PATSY
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CHASL, ROBBIE MCKAY (collectively. “Arkansas DHS Defendants™) and LISA

GARRETSON, and would respectfully show this THonorable Court as follows:

1. PARTIES
Plaintiff. RACHEL CLARK. is a natural person domiciled in the State of Colorado.
Plaintill, CHRISTOPHER GARRETSON. 15 a natural person domiciled in the State
of Colorado.
Plaintilt, AMANDA SHARP BURKHOLDER, is a natural person domiciled in the

State ol Arkansas.

Plaintiff. NICOLE HALLER NAVA. 15 a natural person domiciled in the State of

Missourt.

Plaintifl, ASHLEY FENTON PRICE, is a natural person domiciled in the State of

Oklahoma,

Plainafl. CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS. Individually and as Next Friend of 1183,
a minor, is a natural person domiciled i the State ol Arkansas.

Defendant, KURT KNICKREIM. is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and
may be served with process at his principal residence, 17 Vantage Point. Little
Rock. Arkansas 72207,

Defendant, RICHARD WEISS. 15 a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and
may be served with process at his principal residence. 14305 Saint Michael Drive.

Little Rock. Arkansas 72211

Pt Ocpmal Compiainl
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).

Defendant. DEBBIE WILLIAMS. is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and
may be served with process at her principal residence. 7807 Bartsch Avenue. Fort
Smith. Arkansas 72903,

Delendant, DICK PICKARTS. is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and may
be served with process at his principal place of business, Logan County, Arkansas
Department of Human Services. 17 West McKeen Street. Paris, Arkansas 72855,
Defendant, NIKKOLE THURST, 15 a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and
may be served with process at her principal residence, 2901 W. Main Street, Ozark,
Arkansas 72949 or at her principal place of business, Ozark Public Schools, 1609
Walden Drive, Ozark. Arkansas 72949,

Delendant. CAROL GILLIS, is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and may
be served with process at her principal place of business, Logan County. Arkansas
Department of Human Services. 17 West McKeen Streel, Paris, Arkansas 72855,
Defendant. PATSY CHASIL is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and may
be served with process at her principal residence, 393 N, Center Avenue,
Booneville. Arkansas 72927,

Delendant, ROBBIE MCKAY. is a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and may
he served with process at her principal place ol business. Sebastan County.
Arkansas  Department ol Human Services. 616 Garrison Avenue, Ft.o Smith,
Arkansas 72901,

Delendant, LISA GARRITTSON. 15 a natural personal domiciled in Arkansas and
may be served with process at her principal residence. 1214 Mays Branch Road.

Van Buren. Arkansas 72956,

Pl Ol U omplaont
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1. JURISDICTION

17. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because this lawsuit
contains claims that arise under the laws of the United States.  Specifically.
Plaintifts assert causes of action based upon 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and 18 US.C. §
2255, Additionally. this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 for
claims that are related 1o the federal claim,

Il. VENUE

18, Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C.§ 1391(b)(2) because a
substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in the
Western District of Arkansas,

IV.  FACTS

19, In or around May 1998, the Arkansas Department of Human Scrvices (“Arkansas
DHS™) approved Clarence “Charlic™ Garretson and his wife, Defendant LISA
GARRETSON. to be foster parents despite the Tact that, one year prior to the
approval. Arkansas DHS had substantiated a report that Charlie had sexually
assaulied two children at knifepoint,

200 For several vears following the approval. the Garretson home operated as a den ol
sexual depravity. with the Arkansas DHS Defendants serving up a scemingly
cndless supply of victims and Charlie sexually assaulting child alter child, At least
cighteen of the thirty-five children placed in the Garretson home were sexually
abused by Charlie Garretson,

210 Benween 1998 and 2004 the Arkansas DHS Defendants reccived several vietim

complaints about Charlie’s sexual abuse in the home. Despite these complaints, the

Pl Ogmmal Coimplan
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Arkansas DIS Defendants failed to remove any of the children from the Garretson
home. Instead. the victims were forced 1o stay in the custody of their abuser,
Charhie was employed as a long haul truck driver. Not only did he assault his
vietims in and around his home. he also assaulted them in the Tamily vehicles. as
well as the 18-wheeler he used for his employment. Charlie frequently took his
victims with him on his trucking routes. so that he could satisly his carnal urges
even when he was away [rom home,

In or around July 1998, Defendant RICHARD WEISS became Interim Director ol
the Arkansas DIIS.

In or around July 1998, the Arkansas DHS placed Plaintiff AMANDA SHARP
BURKHOLDER in the Garretson home. At the time of her placement, Plaintiff
AMANDA SHARP BURKHOLDER was 13 years old (4 minor) and a ward ol the
State.

Delendant ROBBIE  MCKAY  served  as Plainull AMANDA - SHARFP
BURKHOLDIER s caseworker.

In or around January 1999, Delendant KURT KNICKREHM became Director ol
the Arkansas DIS.

In or around September 1999, the Arkansas DHS placed Plaintills CHRISTOPHER
GARRETSON and RACHLEL CLARK in the Garretson home. At the tme ol his
placement. Plaintt!T CHRISTOPHER GARRETSON was 9 vears old (a minor) and
a ward ol the State. A the time of her placement. PlaintfT RACHLEL CLARK was

15 years old (o minor) and a ward of the State. At the tume ol their placement,

Phamitts Ol Complinnt
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33

Plaintilt CHRISTOPHER GARRETSON was known as Christopher Reichard and
Plaintiff RACHEL CLARK was known as Rachel Reichard.

In or around January 2000, the Arkansas DHS placed Plaintift ASHLEY FENTON
PRICE in the Garretson home. At the time of her placement. Plantiff ASHLLEY
FENTON PRICE was 13 years old (a minor) and a ward of the State.

During the winter of 2000, Charlie began to sexually assault Plaintiff ASHLEY
FENTON PRICE.

‘The sexual assaults of Plaintiftf ASHLEY FENTON PRICE lasted for two months.
In or about January 2000, the Arkansas DHS placed Plaintff BRANDI O'HARA in
the Garretson home. At the time of her placement, Plaintift BRANDI O°'HARA
was 13 years old (a minor) and a ward of the State.

Defendant DEBBIE WILLIAMS  served as  Plaintiftt BRANDI OTTIARA s
caseworker,

Defendant LISA GARRETSON denied PlaintilT BRANDI O'HARA prescription
medication.

Defendant DEBBIE WILLIAMS obtained actual knowledge that PlaintilT BRANDI
O'HARA was denied preseription medication in her foster home. Yel. no action
was taken.

In or around 2000. the Arkansas DIS placed Plainuff CHARLA BEAUMON]
VIENS in the Garretson home. At the time of her placement, Plaintift CHARILA
BEAUMONT VIENS was 13 years old (a minor) and a ward ol the State.
Defendant ROBBIE MCKAY served as Plaintft CHAREA BEAUMONT VIENSs

caseworker,

Phanttls Ongmal Coniplan
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In or around 2000, the Arkansas DHS placed PlamullT NICOLE HALLER NAVA
in the Garretson home. At the time ol her placement. Plamtft NICOLLE HALLER
NAVA was 11 years old (a minor) and a ward ol the State,

Defendant NIKKOLE HURST served as Plaintiff NICOLL: HALLER NAVA's
caseworker, and Defendant DICK PICKARTS served as the director of the
Arkansas DHS in Logan County and as Defendant NIKKOLLE HURST s
supervisor.  Defendants CAROL GILLIS and PATSY CHASE also served as
Plaintiff NICOLE HALLER NAVA™s caseworkers.

Shortly therealter, Charlie began to sexually assault PlaintlT NICOLE HALLER
NAVA.

Defendants NIKKOLE HURST, DICK PICKARTS, CAROL GILLIS and PATSY
CHASL obtained actual knowledge that Plaintilt NICOLE HALLER NAVA was
being sexually assaulted by Charlie Garretson in her foster home. Yet, no action
was tuken. No report was made to the authoritics or the child abuse hotline. and the
foster children. including a known sexual abuse victim, were lelt in the Garretson
home.

The sexual assault of Plaintift NICOLL HALLER NAVA continued until 2002,
During the summer of 2000, Charlie began to sexually assault Plainufl BRANDI
O HARA.

Defendant DEBBIE WILLIAMS obtained actual knowledge that Plaintift BRANDI
OTHARA was being sexually assaulied by Charlie Garretson in her foster home.

Yel. no action was taken. No report was made to the authorities or the child abuse

Phomttls Oneal Complamt
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46.

50,

52

hotline. and the foster children. including a known sexual abuse victim, were left in
the Garretson home.

The sexual assaults of Plaintift BRANDI O'HARA occurred on a bi-weekly basis
for a period of five years.

During the summer of 2000, Charlic began to sexually  assault Plaintiff
CHRISTOPHER GARRETSON.

In or around October 2000, Charlie and Defendant LISA GARRETSON adopted
Plaintif T CHRISTOPHEER GARRETSON.,

The sexual assaults of Plaintiff CHRISTOPHER GARRETSON continued until the
summer of 2003,

In or around 2000, Charlie sexually assaulted Plaintill AMANDA  SHARP
BURKHOLDER.

The sexual assaults of Plaintift AMANDA SHARP BURKIOLDER continued
until September 2002,

[n addition  to  being  sexually assaulted,  Plaintifft  AMANDA  SHARP
BURKIOLDER also was physically abused in the Garretson home,

Delendant ROBBILE MCKAY obtained actual knowledge that Plainuft AMANDA
SHARP BURKIHOLDIR was physically abused in her foster home. Yet. no action
was taken. No report was made to the authorities or the child abuse hotline. and the
foster children. including a known physical abuse victim. were lefi in the Garretson
home.

In or around 2001, Charlic sexually assaulted Plaint T RACHEL CLARK.

PLombitts el © omplant
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Ol.

Charlie and Defendant LISA GARRETSON allowed non-foster children to stay in
their home as well. [n or around late 2002, a relative of the Garretsons. Chris Jones.
impregnated Plaintiff CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS in the Garretson home. Al
the time of the impregnation, Plaintifl CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS was a
minor foster child in the custody ol the Arkansas DIS. Plainufl CHARLA
BEAUMONT VIENS gave birth to H.B., a minor, in September 2003,

In October 2003, Delendant LISA GARRETSON insisted that Plainuff CHARLA
BEAUMONT VIENS travel with Charlie during a road trip. On this road trip.

Charlie sexually assaulted PlaintilT CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS,

The sexual assaults of Plaintift CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS continued until

2004,

In 2004, the Arkansas DHS linally revoked the Toster status ol the Garretsons,
However, Charlie’s reign of sexual terror continued.

In or around July 2014, Charlic took H.B.. the 10-year-old daughter of his former
foster child and victim, Plaintift CHARLA BEAUMONT VIENS. on a road trip.
During the road trip. Charlie raped H.B. repeatedly,

In or around May 2016. H.B.. then 12 vears old, reported her abuse 1o the
authorities.

In or around June 2016, Charlic was arrested.

In or around October 2016, Charlie pled guilty o multiple counts of interstate
tansportation ol minors with intent 1o engage in criminal sexual activiiy in
violation of 18 ULS.C, § 2423,

On May 31. 2017 Charlie was sentenced o lite in prison for his erimes.

Plvnidts Orinal Complinmi
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Following Charlie’s arrest and guilty plea. Plaintffs began to understand the
mappropriate nature of their relations with Charlie.  Further. following Charlie’s
arrest and guilty plea, Plaintiffs discovered their injuries and the effects of their
abuse, Therefore, Plaintiffs™ action is timely pursuant to ARK. CODE. ANN. § 16-50-

130.

V. CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT 1:42 U.S.C. § 1983 AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

63,

O

00,

67.

068,

Plaintifls adopt and incorporate by relerence each and every allegation set lorth
above,

Whether by involuntary removal or voluntary surrender. children come into the
Arkansas DHSs foster care system 1o be protected from harm.

While in the foster care system, foster children remain in the custody ol the
Arkansas DHS.

Gitven this special relationship, the Arkansas DS Defendants have the tundamental
duty to ensure that each foster child is in an appropriate placement and conlirm that
each foster child in the Arkansas DHS's care is sale and healthy.

At all times relevant hercto, it was clearly established that Plaintifls  had

fundamental rights 1o physical safety and o be free from the infliction of

UNNCCCSSATY Pain,
Furthermore. at all times relevant hereto. it was clearly established that children in

the custody of the Arkansas DHS. including Plaintitls. had o right to be sale and

Phunutl Crmal Complan
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free from unreasonable risks of harm and a right not to be handed over by state
officers to a foster parent whom is known or suspected 1o be a child abuser.

09. The above-mentioned rights are guaranteed to Plaintiffs under the Fifth and/or
Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

70. On a systemic scale, however, Defendants exhibited a pervasive pattern of
indifference to Plaintiffs” and their substantive due process rights.

71, Delendants, acting under the color of stale law as a foster parent. foster care worker
and/or employce of the Arkansas DHS, violated Plaintiffs” substantive due process
rights by imter alia:

a. Approving Charlic to be a foster parent despite actual knowledge of his
history of sexual assault upon children;

b, Failing to conduct a proper background check of the Garretsons prior 1o
placing PlaitifTs in their care;

c. Failing to thoroughly investigate the fitness of the foster home:

d. Failing to maintain proper supervision ol the foster home:

¢, Deliberately ignoring repeated warnings and signs ol abuse:

I Failing to promptly investigate allegations ol abuse: and

g, Failing to promptly remove Plamul1s from the Garretson home after actual
notice that Plaintiffs were being sexually and/or physically abused.

72 Defendants had notice of a pattern of violations of Plamtills™ constitutional rights
and/or ol behavior that threatened a violaton ol Plamtlfs” constitutional rights.
Despite this notice. Defendants were deliberately imdifferent o and/or tacitly

authorized the unconstitutional acts.

Pl Organal Compliani Mage 11
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74.

76.

77

Defendants displayed a pattern of omissions revealing deliberate indifference 1o
specilic duties imposed for the purpose ol safeguarding Plaintiffs from abuse.
Indeed. as discussed infra. Defendants” actions demanstrate a failure to comply
with specific laws and policies designed to protect children. including Plaintiffs.
Furthermore, at all times relevant hereto, Defendants knew that their practices and
policies created a substantial risk of harm to children in the care of Arkansas DHS
and deliberately failed 1o choose reasonable alternatives 1o those practices and
policies in deliberate disregard of Plaintiffs” constitutional rights.

Defendants, through their conscious disregard to the rights of Plamuffs and their
deliberate indifference to a known risk. created the danger to which Plaintifls were
exposed. To wit, Defendants handed Plaintifts over to a known sexual predator — a
behavior that shocks the conscious.

Defendants. through their unconstitutional practices. deliberate indifference and
repeated acts ol gross negligence, lacilitated Charlie’™s ability to foster and/or adopt
Plaintiffs — thereby Facilitating his access to his victims,

Defendants, through their unconstitutional practices. deliberate indilference and
repeated acts of gross neglipence, were a substantial factor in causing Plaintilfs’
injuries and damages.

Plaintifls would not have been placed in Charlie™s care. have been permitted 1o
remain in Charlie’s care. and/or have been adopted by Charlie but for Defendants’

deliberate indifTerence to their constitutional rights

il Ongmal Complinnt
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COUNT 2: 18 U.S.C. § 2255 AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

79, Plamtifls adopt and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth
above,
80.  Given his prolession as a truck driver. Charlie Irequently transported PlamtifTs with
him across state lines to engage in sexual activity with them,
81.  Charlic knowingly enticed Plaintiffs, while minors, to travel interstate to engage in
sexual activity with him. Therefore., Charlie violated 18 U.S.C. § 2422
82, Charlie knowingly transported Plaintiffs, while minors. interstate 1o engage in
sexual activity with him. Therefore, Charlie violated 18 U.S.C. § 2423,
83, Delendants knew ol these offenses. Indeed. Defendants acted to facilitate these
oftensces by:
a. Approving a known child predator to be a foster parent; and
b. Allowing loster children to remain in Charlie’s care despite actual
knowledge ol sexual abuse.
By so facilitating, aiding and/or abetting these offenses. Defendants are liable as
principals under 18 11LS.C, 8 2
84, Pursuant 1o 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Defendants are civilly liable to Plaintills for the

statutory violations described herein,

3. NLEGLIGENCE PERSE AGAINST  DEFENDANTS - WILLIAMS,

ARTS. HURST. GILLIS, CHASLE. MCKAY AND GARRETSON

85, Plamtiffs adopt and incorporate by relerence each and every allegation set forth

above.
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88,

Arkansas law requires that any loster parent. foster care worker, or employee ol the
Arkansas DHS “immediately notily the Child Abuse Hotline il he or she has
reasonable cause to suspect that a child has been subjected to child maltreaiment.”
ARK, CODE, ANN. § 12-18-402.

Defendant DEBBIE WILLIAMS had reasonable cause to suspeet that Charlic was
sexually abusing children, including Plaintiff BRANDI O'HARA.  Defendant
DEBBIE WILLIAMS had a duty to report such abuse.  Nonetheless, Defendant
DEBBIE WILLIAMS willtully and knowingly failed to report such abuse and.

therefore violated this statute. This failure caused Plaintiffs to suffer injury and

damages by being or continuing to be sexually abused. Plaintiffs are of the type of

victim the statute sought to protect. and Plaintif(s” injuries are of the type of injury
the statute sought to prevent. Therefore. Defendant DEBBIE WILLIAMS was
neghgent per se in failing to report the abuse.

Defendant DICK PICKARTS had reasonable cause to suspeet that Charlic was
sexually abusing  children. including Plaintift NICOLE HALLER NAVA,
Defendant DICK PICKARTS had a duty o report such abuse.  Nonetheless.
Defendant DICK PICKARTS willtully and knowingly failed 1o report such abuse
and. therefore violated this statute. This failure caused Plaintiffs to suffer injury

and damages by being or continuing 10 be sexually abused.  Plaintilfs are ol the

type of vietim the statute sought 1o proteet. and Plaintit!s™ injuries are of the type ol

injury the statute sought to prevent. Therelore. Defendant DICK PICKARTS was

negligent per sein fmhng to report the abuse,

Pl Choenal Complast
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00.

91.

Defendant NIKKOLL HURST had reasonable cause to suspect that Charlie was
sexually abusing children. including  Plaintiff NICOLE HALLER NAVA.
Defendant NIKKOLLL HURST had a duty o report such abuse.  Nonctheless.
Defendant NIKKOLLE HURST willfully and knowingly failed to report such abuse
and, therelore violated this statute. This fatlure caused Plaintiffs to suffer injury

and damages by being or continuing to be sexually abused. Plaintiffs are of the

type of victim the statute sought to protect. and Plaintiffs™ injuries are of the type of

injury the statute sought to prevent. Therefore. Defendant NIKKOLLE HURST was
negligent per se in failing to report the abuse.

Defendant CAROL GILLIS had reasonable cause to suspect that Charlie was
sexually abusing  children,  including  Plaintiff NICOLLE HALLER NAVA.
Detendant CAROL GILLIS had a duty o report such abuse.  Nonetheless.
Defendant CAROL GILLIS willfully and knowingly failed to report such abuse
and, therefore violated this statute. This failure caused Plaimtiffs o suffer injury
and damages by being or continuing to be sexually abused.  Plaintiffs arc of the
type of victim the statute sought to protect. and Plaintilfs™ injuries are of the type of
mjury the statute sought to prevent.  Therefore. Defendant CAROL GILLIS was
negligent per se in fatling to report the abuse.

Defendant PATSY CHASE had reasonable cause o suspect that Charlie was
sexually —abusing  children. including  Plamtft NICOLI: HALLER NAVA.
Defendant PATSY CHASE had a duty 1o report such abuse.  Nonetheless.
Defendant PATSY CHASE willfully and knowingly Tailed 1o report such abuse

and_ therefore violated ths statute. This failure caused Plaintffs o sulTer injury

Plmutts Ongmal Complamt

Filed 06/05/17 Page 15 of 20 PagelD #: 15

Page |3



Case 2:17-cv-02091-PKH Document 1

02

93,

and damages by being or continuing 1o be sexually abused.  Plaintiffs are of the

type of victim the statute sought to protect. and Plaintiffs™ injuries are of the type of

injury the statute sought to prevent,  Therefore. Defendant PATSY CHASE was
negligent per se in lailing to report the abuse.

Defendant ROBBIE MCKAY had reasonable cause to suspect that Charlie was
physically and/or sexually abusing children, including Plaintiff AMANDA SHARP
BURKHOLDER. Defendant ROBBIE MCKAY had a duty to report such abuse.
Nonetheless, Defendant ROBBIE MCKAY willfully and knowingly failed 1o report
such abuse and, therefore violated this statute. This failure caused Plaintiffs 1o
suffer injury and damages by being or continuing to be physically and/or sexually
abused.  Plamtiffs are of the type ol vietim the statute sought 1o proteet, and
Plaintifts™ injuries are of the type of injury the statule sought 1o prevent, Therefore.
Defendant ROBBIE MCKAY was negligent per se in failing to report the abuse.
Defendant LISA GARRETSON had reasonable cause to suspeet that Charlie was
sexually abusing children. including Plaintffs. Defendant LISA GARRETSON had
a duty 1o report such abuse. Noncetheless. Defendant LISA GARRETSON willfully
and knowingly failed 1o report such abuse and. thercfore violated this statute. This
latlure caused Plaintfls to suller injury and damages by being or continuing 1o be
sexually abused, Plainufls are of the type of victim the statute sought 1o protect.
and Plaintffs™ injuries are of the type of mjury the statute sought to prevent.
Therefore. Defendant TISA GARRETSON was neglhigent per se in Tailing (o report

the abusce,

Phimtlls" Orvenal Complanm
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COUNT 4: NEGLIGENCE AGAINST DEFE

94, Plaintills adopt and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth
above.

95 Delendant LISA GARRETSON committed negligence by [ailing to act as a
reasonable and prudent person would have under the same or similar circumstances,
specifically. Defendant LISA GARRETSON committed negligence by:

a. Failing to protect Plaintiffs from sexual and/or physical abuse:

b. Allowing Charlic to use her home and vehicles to sexually and/or
physically abuse PlaintifTs:

¢. Faling to warn Plaintilfs o Charlie’s inappropriate behavior toward
minor children;

d. Failing to report suspected abuse by Charlie in breach of common law and
statutory duties. and

e Committing other acts ol neghgence with Plaintiffs shall further deseribe
atter an adequate time Tor discovery.

96, Defendant LISA GARRETSON's negligence as deseribed in the preceding

Paragraph proximately caused PlaintifTs to suffer injury and damages,

VI. DAMAGES
97. Plmnufls adopt and incorporate by reference each and every allegation set forth
above,
98, As a direet and proximate result of Delendants”™ wronglul actions. Plaintills have

sutlered bodily ijury. severe mental anguish. including physical manilestations of
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mental anguish, humiliation. embarrassment. and confusion. These injuries have in
the past and will in the future interfere with Plaintiffs™ daily lives. reputation and
ability to carn enjoy live and otherwise carry out their day-to-day responsibilities,
PlaintifTs. theretore, claim the following specific items of damage 10 date:

a. Reasonable and necessary medical expenses incurred in the past;

b. Reasonable and necessary medical expenses reasonably likely o be

incurred in the future:

¢. Past physical pain and suftering;

d. Mental anguish in the past;

¢, Mental anguish in the {uture;

[, Minimum statutory damages pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255(a);
2. Costs, including attorneys”™ fees and expert witness fees as allowed by 42

LLS.C. § 1988,

h. Pre-judgment interest at the highest rate allowed by law: and

1o Post-judgment interest at the highest rate allowed by law,

VI, EXEMPLARY AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES

99, Plaintifls adopt and incorporate by reference cach and every allegation set forth
above,

100, Defendants™ conduct in condemning children to life with a known violent sexual
predator mvolved a reckless and callous indilference o the federally protecied

rights ol Plaintlts,

PLomtn s Ol C omplat e 18
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101,

102

103,

Pl ts COwigmal Complni e

In light of the surrounding circumstances. cach Defendant knew or should have
known that his or her conduct would naturally and probably result in injury o1
damage.  Yet despite such knowledge, cach Defendant proceeded with reckless
disregard of the consequence to Plaintiffs.

Thercfore. Plaintiffs seck exemplary and punitive damages under the causes of

action asserted herein,

VIIL JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury.

1X. PRAYER
WHEREFORE. PREMISES CONSIDERED, Plaintiffs pray that Defendants be
cited to appear and answer herein, as the law directs, and that upon final hearing
thereol, Plaintilfs have and recover judgment over and from Delendant in such

amounts as the evidence may show proper at the time of trial. together with pre-

Judgment and post-judgment interest thereon at the maximum legal rate allowed by

law. cost ol Courl. and for such other and further reliel. both general and special. at
law or in equity. to which Plaintiffs may show themselves justly entitled. Plainuffs
specifically pray  for exemplary damages against Defendants as allowed by

applicable law and as established by the evidence presented at trial.
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